
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, November 28, 2022 7:00 pm Spellman Education Center  
  
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 
I. Call to Order ............................................................................................ President Tiernan 

Salute to the Flag (led by Shayna Tate and Thomas Pettit 
    of Peirce Middle School) 

 
II. Roll Call ...................................................................................................... Ms. Cherashore 

 
III. Public Comments on Agenda Items (Sign-in Required) .............................. Ms. Cherashore 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes of the October 25, 2022 School Board Meeting ...... President Tiernan 

 
V. Approval of the November 28, 2022 School Board Meeting Agenda ....... President Tiernan 

 
VI. Superintendent’s Report ............................................................................... Dr. Sokolowski 

 Student Representatives’ Report ....... Emily McElreavey, East High School 
    ............ Shaun Joseph, Henderson High School 
    ..................... C.J. McCune, Rustin High School 

 
VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations ............................................................ Dr. Ulmer 

 
VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda ................................................................... President Tiernan 

 
IX. School Board Reports 

 
Committee Reports 

 
A. Education ............................................................................................... Director Shaw 

* 1. Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 
• Henderson HS – Class of 2002 Book Scholarship 
• Henderson HS – South Asian Student Association 
• Henderson HS – Women in Business 

* 2. Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 
• Henderson HS – F.B.L.A. Henderson 

* 3. • East High School Model UN Club – Washington, DC, 2/16-2/19/2023 
• Henderson High School Model UN – Philadelphia, PA, 1/26-1/29/2023 
• Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools German Club – Berlin, Germany, 

6/22-7/1/2023 
• Rustin High School Marching Band – Oahu, Hawaii, 12/4-12/11/2022 
• Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools French – Quebec City, Canada, 

6/26-6/30/2023 
• Henderson High School Music Department – Boston, MA, 3/30-4/2/2023 
• Rustin High School Girls Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 

11/4-11/5/2022 



 
 
AGENDA Page 2 Monday, November 28, 2022 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

• Henderson High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, 
PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 

• East High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 
11/4-11/5/2022 

• Henderson High School X-Caliber – Wilks, PA, 12/16-12/17/2022 

* 4. Approval of Revised Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/ 
Individuals, Second Reading  

* 5. Approval of Revised Policy 913.2 – Dissemination by Nonschool 
Organizations, Groups or Individuals (formerly known as Distribution or 
Posting of Nonschool Organizations, Groups or Individuals) Second Reading 

* 6. Approval of 2023-2024 School Calendar, First Reading 

 
B. Pupil Services .................................................................................... Director Chester 

* 1. Approval of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements 

 
C. Personnel ........................................................................................ Director Herrmann 

   

 
D. Property and Finance .......................................................... Vice President Bevilacqua 

* 1. Approval of Resolution to Implement Act 57 of 2022  

* 2. Approval of Updated Capital Plan  

* 3. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project  

 
Other Reports 

A. Intermediate Unit .............................................................................. Director Durnell 
B. PSBA Report ................................................................................ Director Herrmann 
C. Legislative Liaison ............................................................................... Director Shaw 
D. Equity Report ................................................................................... Director Durnell 
 

X. Other Business ........................................................................................ President Tiernan 

* 1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period October 1, 2022 to October 31, 2022 

* 2. Approval of the October 31, 2022 Financial Report 

 3. Approval of the revised Human Resources Job Description, Human Resources 
Specialist 

 4. Approval of the new Human Resources Job Description and Position, Human 
Resources Generalist 

 5. Approval of the new Human Resources Job Description and Position, Human 
Resources Lead Generalist 

 6. Approval of revised Technology Job Description, Communications Technician 

 7. Approval of the new Pupil Services Job Description and Position, Registered 
Behavior Technician 

 8. Approval of 2022-23 Non-Bargaining Support Staff Salary Ranges 



 
 
AGENDA Page 3 Monday, November 28, 2022 

 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
*Consent Agenda Items 

 9. Approval of Non-Bargaining Support Staff Compensation, Benefits, and Work 
Environment Guide for a five (5) year term beginning on July 1, 2023 and 
ending on June 30, 2028. 

 10. Approval of the Computer Design and Integration LLC (CDI) contract 

 
XI. Comments from Residents (Sign-in Required) ........................................... Ms. Cherashore 

 
XII. Adjournment ............................................................................................ President Tiernan 

 
West Chester Area SD public meetings are live streamed and recorded for the purpose 
of public broadcast and posting on the Internet. The West Chester Area SD disclaims 

responsibility for both images, statements and/or actions made by those in attendance 
at the recorded public meetings. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD—Meeting of October 25, 2022 

Documents previously distributed to Board Members are not recopied or submitted with 
this draft. Minutes of this meeting, in compliance with Section 518 of the School Laws of 
Pennsylvania and after approval by the School Board Members will be transcribed into 
the permanent minute book together with reports indicated (copy in). Routine reports and 
lengthy multi-page documents made a part of the minutes of this meeting are filed 
separately for permanent record. 
 
 

I. Call to Order 

 
The West Chester Area School Board met at 7:00 p.m. in the Spellman Education 
Center, 782 Springdale Dr. Exton, PA. Board President Tiernan called the meeting to 
order and Gioia Latta, Matthew Byrne and Ava Toomer of Greystone Elementary School 
led the public in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

II. Roll Call  
 
Members Present: Vice President Bevilacqua, Director Chester, Director Durnell, 
Director Fleming, Director Herrmann (by phone), Director Shaw, President Tiernan, 
Director Whomsley. Student Representatives: Emily McElreavey, East High School; 
Shaun Joseph, Henderson High School; C.J. McCune, Rustin High School. 
 
Members Absent: Director Detre 
 

III. Public Comments on Agenda Items 
There were no public comments on agenda items. 
 
 

IV. Approval of  Minutes of the September 27, 2022 Monthly School Board 
Meeting 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Durnell and seconded by Director Fleming 
to approve the minutes of the September 27, 2022 monthly School Board Meeting.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 
 
President Tiernan announced that the Board met in Executive Session on October 
17, 2022 regarding personnel and negotiations and this evening, October 25, 2022 
regarding personnel. 
 
 
 

V. Approval of the October 25, 2022 School Board Meeting Agenda  



October 25, 2022 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Chester to approve the October 25, 2022 meeting agenda. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 

VI. Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Sokolowski and the High School Student Representatives gave monthly 
report(s). 
 
 

VII. Approval of Personnel Recommendations—Dr. Ulmer (Copy In) 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Shaw to approve the Personnel Recommendations as presented.  
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 

 
 

VIII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Director Whomsley and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the following Consent Agenda Items:  

Education 

1. Approval to Establish the Following Account(s):  
-Henderson HS - Ping Pong Club 
-Henderson HS - Badminton Club 
-Henderson HS - E Sports 
-Henderson HS - Class of 2026 
-Henderson HS - Operation Smile 

2. Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s):  
-Rustin HS Model United Nations – University of Virginia 

3. Approval of Revised Policy 137 – Home Education Programs, Second Reading 

4. Approval of Revised Policy 137.1 – Extracurricular Participation by Home Education 
Students, Second Reading 

5. Approval to Retire Administrative Guideline 137AG2: Participation in District 
Activities by Home Education Students, Second Reading 

6. Approval of Revised Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/ 
Individuals, First Reading  

7. Approval of Revised Policy 913.2 – Dissemination by Nonschool Organizations, 
Groups or Individuals (formerly known as Distribution or Posting of Nonschool 
Organizations, Groups or Individuals) First Reading  

 

Pupil Services 

1. Approval of the following Contract Renewal- 
Staffing: Devereux Advanced Behavioral Health Contract 

 

Personnel 

1. Approval of Revised Board Policy 803, School Calendar, Second Reading 



October 25, 2022 

 

Property & Finance 

1. Approval to Commit/Assign Fund Balances and to Complete Transfers from the 
General Fund to Other Funds 
Approval is requested to commit fund balances for health care stabilization in the 
amount of $4,159,909. Approval is also requested to assign fund balances for 
alternative education in the amount of $2,000,000, property assessment 
fluctuations in the amount of $1,000,000, technology/distance learning in the 
amount of $500,000, elementary construction in the amount of $5,000,000, 
athletics in the amount of $150,756, and millage stabilization in the amount of 
$52,121,467.  Approval is also requested for a transfer from the General Fund to 
the Capital Reserve Fund in the amount of $6,237,264 and approval is also 
requested for a transfer of $459,006 in refunding savings from the General Fund to 
the Capital Reserve Fund and an additional $33,834 from the General Fund to the 
Capital Reserve Fund. 

2. Approval of 2021-22 Budget Transfers 

3. Approval of Change Orders – Renovations and Additions to Glen Acres Elementary 
School 

Project # Description Amount 

GC-011 Add angle steel and furring to existing canopy that 
was to be removed, but now will remain. 

$5,905.00 

EC-001 Breaker size and wire size changes needed to 
match approved cabinet unit heaters. 

$1,965.00 

EC-002 Breaker size and wire size changes for exhaust fans 
and RTU-3  

$6,095.00 

MC-001 Assemble piping packages for the 5 UV's purchased 
by WCASD for Phase 1A 

$6,858.60 
 

SC-003 Install temporary storm water drainage piping due to 
supply chain issues with new UG retention basin 
piping 

$8,500.00 
 

SC-004 Install additional millings in parking lot and driveline 
of the new cafeteria addition 

$4,500.00 
 

SC-005 Remove 4 additional trees and replace at end of 
project 

$4,600.00 

 

4. Approval to Award Bids for 2022-23 Capital Reserve and Capital Fund Projects 

Project # Description Vendor Location Award 
Amount 

G-064 Furnish and Install 
EMS/Cellular 
Booster 

RF Design 
and 
Integration, 
Inc. 

Mary C. Howse $59,135.98 
 

G-064 
 

Furnish and Install 
EMS/Cellular 
Booster 

RF Design 
and 
Integration, 
Inc. 

Sarah 
Starkweather 

$59,900.12 

C-055 Furnish and Install 
EMS/Cellular 
Booster 

RF Design 
and 

Westtown-
Thornbury 

$59,650.91 



October 25, 2022 

Integration, 
Inc. 

C-055 
 

Furnish and Install 
EMS/Cellular 
Booster 

RF Design 
and 
Integration, 
Inc. 

Penn Wood $64,725.24 

    $243,412.25 

     

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

Mary C. Howse $1,034.00 

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

Fern Hill 
 

$6,264.00 

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

Exton $10,025.00 

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

East Bradford $10,025.00 

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

Penn Wood $9,872.00 

G-128 Playground 
Replacement 

George Ely 
Associates 

Westtown-
Thornbury 

$1,517.00 

    $38,737.00 
 

5. Approval of Revised Board Policy 808, Food Services, Second Reading 

 
X. Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of September 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022 

2. Approval of the September 30, 2022 Financial Report 

 

IX. School Board Reports 
 
Education and Pupil Services Committees - Director Chester 
Personnel Committee - Director Herrmann  
Property and Finance Committee - Vice President Bevilacqua 

 
D-8.  Approval of 2023-24 Building Budget Allocations  

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Whomsley to approve the per pupil allocation factor of $146.78 per weighted pupil for the 
2023-24 fiscal year. The weighting factors will be 1 for full-time kindergarten and 
elementary students, 1.02 for middle school students, and 1.35 for high school students. 
The fixed activity expense budget totals $612,360 for all 6 secondary schools which 
includes $154,350 per high school and $49,770 per middle school. The total 2023-24 
building budget allocation is $2,607,617. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 



October 25, 2022 

D-6.  Approval of 2023-24 Capital Fund Projects 
Location Project Description Estimated 

Budget 

Penn Wood ES Re-roof Gymnasium and Seal Stone wall  $      315,500 

Stetson MS Paving replacement - Stetson Parking Lots  $      275,129  

Stetson MS Replace Boilers  $      280,000  

Stetson MS Replace Emergency Generator and Control 
Wiring 

 $      110,000  

StetsonMS Replace Auditorium Stage Lighting System to 
LEDs 

 $        85,250  

Peirce MS Replace Auditorium Stage Lighting System to 
LEDs 

 $        85,250  

Fugett MS Replace Emergency Generator and Control 
Wiring 

 $      135,000  

East Bradford ES Replace Emergency Generator and Control 
Wiring 

 $      105,000  

       
2023-2024 Fund 30 Capital Projects 
Allowance 

 $   1,391,129  

 
Total Estimated Costs of Fund 30 Projects  $   1,391,129   
(over)/under budget  $         -    

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the 2023-24 Capital Fund Projects not to exceed $1,391,129. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 

D-7.   Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Projects 
Location Project Description Estimated 

Budget 

District-wide Emergency Repairs  $     60,000 

District-wide District-wide Concrete Sidewalk and Curb 
Replacement 

 $     75,000  

District-wide District-wide Playground  $   100,000  

District-wide Fencing Repairs/Replacement  $     75,000  

District-wide Flooring Replacement  $     75,000  

District-wide Exterior door security  $   125,000  

East HS Seal Paving and Re-Lining parking lots  $   115,000  

Operations 
Building 

Replace Garage Doors (2)  $     28,000  

Rustin HS Replace Back Flow Preventers at water meter pits  $   175,000  

Rustin HS Add motorized loading dock plate  $     12,500  

Rustin HS Interior Building Painting  $     55,000  

Rustin HS Install door from Library to Courtyard  $     16,000  

Henderson 
HS 

Replace heating and chilled water insulation in 
main gym 

 $     50,000  



October 25, 2022 

Location Project Description Estimated 
Budget 

Henderson 
HS 

Replace Clocktower Controls  $     15,000  

Henderson 
HS 

Interior Building Painting  $   130,000  

Stetson MS Upgrade PA/Intercom System  $     55,000  

Peirce MS Upgrade PA/Intercom System  $     55,000  

Hillsdale ES Shingle roof at kindergarten playground  $     42,500  

East 
Bradford ES 

Replace Shed with Sea Can storage  $       8,000  

Penn Wood 
ES 

Replace Music Room Carpets  $     34,000  

Westtown 
Thornbury 
ES 

Replace Head End unit for PA/Intercom  $     35,000  

      

East HS Install Two (2) Synthetic Turf Fields  $  3,500,000  

      

       
2023-2024 Fund 27 Capital Projects Allowance  $  2,392,872   
Total Estimated Costs of Fund 27 Projects  $  4,836,000   
(over)/under budget  $(2,443,128) 

BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the 2023-24 Capital Reserve Projects not to exceed $4,836,000 
funded by a general fund contribution of $2,392,872 and the one-time utilization of 
Capital Reserve fund balance of $2,443,128. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 
 

X. Other Business 

 
X-3. Approval of the Amendment to the Agreement between the West 

Chester Area School District and the West Chester Area Education 
Support Professionals Association 
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Durnell to approve the Amendment to the Agreement between the West Chester Area 
School District and the West Chester Area Education Support Professionals Association. 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
 

X-4. Approval of the Proposed Agreement between the West Chester Area 
Education Support Professionals Association and the Board of 



October 25, 2022 

Education of the West Chester Area School District for the period of 
July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028  
BOARD ACTION: It was moved by Vice President Bevilacqua and seconded by Director 
Fleming to approve the Proposed Agreement between the West Chester Area Education 
Support Professionals Association and the Board of Education of the West Chester Area 
School District for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028 
 
On roll call vote, all members present voted “aye.” Motion carried 8-0. 
  
 

XI. Comments from Residents 
Name VII. Subject of Testimony 

Constance Holloway District gender transition plans 

Alexis Cooper Unacceptable books 

Mike Winterode Fern Hill ES teacher training 

Nancy Wood Equity  

Melissa Bennett SEL and Equity 

Steph Anderson Censorship 

Amanda Greenberg Book policy  

Daniel Gillin Fern Hill ES teacher training 

 
 

XII. Adjournment 
BOARD ACTION: On motion by Director Durnell, seconded by Director Fleming, the 
Board, on voice vote, agreed to adjourn at 8:40 p.m.  
 
 
 

 

Board Secretary 
 
 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 
Monday, November 28, 2022           7:00 PM Spellman Education Center 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

I recommend the Board approve the following consent agenda items: 

IX.  School Board Reports 
 

Education 

1. Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 
• Henderson HS – Class of 2002 Book Scholarship 
• Henderson HS – South Asian Student Association 
• Henderson HS – Women in Business 

2. Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 
• Henderson HS – F.B.L.A. Henderson 

3. • East High School Model UN Club – Washington, DC, 2/16-2/19/2023 
• Henderson High School Model UN – Philadelphia, PA, 1/26-1/29/2023 
• Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools German Club – Berlin, Germany, 6/22-

7/1/2023 
• Rustin High School Marching Band – Oahu, Hawaii, 12/4-12/11/2022 
• Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools French – Quebec City, Canada, 6/26-

6/30/2023 
• Henderson High School Music Department – Boston, MA, 3/30-4/2/2023 
• Rustin High School Girls Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-

11/5/2022 
• Henderson High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 

11/4-11/5/2022 
• East High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-

11/5/2022 
• Henderson High School X-Caliber – Wilks, PA, 12/16-12/17/2022 

4. Approval of Revised Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/ 
Individuals, Second Reading  

5. Approval of Revised Policy 913.2 – Dissemination by Nonschool Organizations, Groups 
or Individuals (formerly known as Distribution or Posting of Nonschool Organizations, 
Groups or Individuals) Second Reading 

6. Approval of 2023-2024 School Calendar, First Reading 
 

Pupil Services 

1. Approval of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements 
 

Personnel 

  
 

Property & Finance 

1. Approval of Resolution to Implement Act 57 of 2022  

2. Approval of Updated Capital Plan  

3. Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project  
 



 
CONSENT AGENDA  Page 2 November 28, 2022 

X. Other Business 

1. Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of October 1, 2022 to October 31, 2022 

2. Approval of the October 31, 2022 Financial Report 

 
 
 

Responsible Staff: Dr. Sokolowski 
 
Background 

  

These action items are either routine or high consensus items and may not require 
discussion by the Board. If any Board member wishes to discuss any action item, the Board 
President will move it from the consent agenda to its appropriate place on the regular 
agenda. 

 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.1 

 
 

I. Removal from Payroll 

a. Resignations 

    1. Thomas Curtin,1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Westtown Thornbury ES, effective 12/2/22. 

2. Amanda Galajda,1.0 Instructional Coach at Fern Hill ES, effective TBD. 

3. Rosa Green,1.0 Security Greeter at East HS, effective 5/2/22. 

4. Michael Oliver,1.0 Health/Physical Education Teacher at Penn Wood ES, effective 
TBD. 

5. Regina Reidenberg,1.0 Social Studies Teacher at Rustin HS, effective 12/1/22. 

  

b. Retirements  

    1. James DeWitt, Assistant Principal at Stetson MS, effective 6/30/23. 

 
II. Additions to Payroll 

a. Professional Staff: Contract 

1. Hope Phillips 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Teacher (MDS) at Starkweather ES, 
Temporary Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 1/3/23, 
Level 5, Step 7, $66,018 + $1,000 stipend. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Saint Francis University 2011-2015, Master 
of Science from American College of Education 2017-2019 

 Experience Grade 5 MD Special Education Teacher at Evesham Township 
School District 2/2016-10/2022 

 Certification Instructional I, Grades PreK-4, Special Education PreK-8 

   

2. Meghan Terry 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Teacher at East Goshen ES, Professional 
Employee (Tenured), effective 11/16/22, Level 5, Step 5, $64,018 + 
$1,000 stipend. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from West Chester University 2004-2006, Master of 
Arts from Point Loma Nazarene University, CA 2013-2018 

 Experience Special Education at CCIU 8/2017-3/2022, Special Education Co- 
Teacher at Coronado Unified School District, CA 8/2016-6/2017, 
Special Education Transition Teacher (Intern) at Excelsior Academy, 
CA 8/2015-6/2016 

 Certification Instructional II, Special Education PreK-8, Elementary K-4 

 

b. Professional Staff: Long Term Substitute 

   1. Meghan Arters 

 Placement 1.0 English Teacher at Henderson HS, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 3/27/23, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  
During Ms. Cardamone’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Temple University 2018-12/2022 

 Experience No experience 

 Certification Instructional I, English 7-12, Pending 

  

   2. Timothy Cory 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.2 

 
 Placement 1.0 Art Teacher at Fugett MS, Temporary Professional Employee 

(Non-Tenured), effective 1/20/23, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  During 
Ms. McCain’s leave of absence.   

 Education Bachelor of Science from Widener University 2005-2007, Art 
Education at Kutztown University 2020-2022 

 Experience Art Long Term Substitute at West Chester Area School District 
8/2022-1/2023 

 Certification Instructional I, Art K-12 

  

   3. Linda Holahan 

 Placement 1.0 Chemistry Teacher at Henderson HS, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 11/9/22, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  
During Ms. Kern’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from Cairn University 1985-1989 

 Experience Learning Support Extended Per Diem Substitute with STS at 
Collegium Charter School 8/2022-current, Chemistry Teacher Long 
Term Substitute at Wallingford-Swarthmore School District 1/2022-
6/2022, Chemistry Teacher Long Term Substitute at Garnet Valley 
School District 8/2021-1/2022, Chemistry Teacher at Wallingford-
Swarthmore School District 1/2021-6/2021 

 Certification Instructional I, Biology, Chemistry, Music, Elementary K-6 

  

   4. Lori Mapes 

 Placement 1.0 Grade 4 Teacher at Westtown-Thornbury ES, Temporary 
Professional Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 1/17/23, Level 1, 
Step 1, $49,087.  During Ms. Lepka’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from University of Delaware 2007-2011, Master 
of Arts from West Chester University 2019-2022 

 Experience Grade 5 Long Term Substitute at East Bradford ES 8/2022-12/2022, 
Teacher at Immaculate Heart of Mary School 8/2011-6/2022 

 Certification Instructional I, Elementary K-4, Grades 4-8 (ELA) 

  

   5. Joseph McGrail 

 Placement 1.0 English Teacher at Henderson HS, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 8/29/22, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  
During Ms. Bagatta’s/Ms. Peracchia’s leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Arts from Clemson University 2011-2015, Master of 
Education from West Chester University 2020-6/2022 

 Experience Substitute Teacher at Henderson HS with Kelly Education Services 
8/2022-current 

 Certification Instructional I, English 

  

   6. Darryl Perecko 

 Placement 1.0 School Counselor at Henderson HS, Professional Employee 
(Tenured), effective TBD, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  During Ms. 
Sullivan/Ms. Gamble’s leave of absence. 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.3 

 
 Education Bachelor of Arts from Gannon University 1999-2003, Master of 

Science from Gannon University 2004-2006, Education Leadership-
Principal Certification from Immaculata University 2013-2014 

 Experience Director at Achievement House Cyber Charter School 9/2019-8/2021, 
High School Assistant Principal at Phoenixville HS 2016-2019, High 
School Counselor at Spring-Ford HS 2006-2016 

 Certification Educational Specialist II, Secondary School Counselor, Administrative 
I, Principal K-12 

  

   7. Janice Ryan 

 Placement 1.0 Grade 1 Teacher at Glen Acres ES, Temporary Professional 
Employee (Non-Tenured), effective 1/20/23, Level 1, Step 1, $49,087.  
During Ms. Primus’ leave of absence. 

 Education Bachelor of Science from West Chester University 1986-1987 

 Experience Grade 1 Long Term Substitute at West Chester Area School District 
9/2021-6/2022, Building Substitute with Kelly Services – current, 
Grade 1 Teacher at Prince William County Schools 8/1997-12/2012, 
Grade 2 Teacher at Berkeley Township School District, NJ 9/1998-
6/1990 

 Certification Instructional I, Elementary K-6 

 

c. Administrative Staff: Contract - None 

 

d. Support Staff: Non-Bargaining - None 

 

e. Support Staff: Contract 

    1. Omaria Alamo 

 Placement 1.0 Special Education Paraprofessional at Hillsdale ES, 7 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 1, 
$17.00/hr. 

    2. Karen Becker 

 Placement .5 Library/Office Assistant at East Bradford ES, 3.5 hrs./day, 5 
days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 2, Step 1, $20.75. 

    3. Sondra Brown 

 Placement 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Glen Acres ES, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 
262 days/year, effective TBD, Group 5, Step 2, $21.06/hr. 

    4. Beth Collins 

 Placement 1.0 Library/Office Assistant at .5 Fern Hill ES/.5 Penn Wood ES, 7 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 2, Step 
1, $20.75/hr. 

    5. Nicholas DeLuca 

 Placement 1.0 Technology Service Specialist II at Spellman Education Center, 8 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 days/year, effective TBD, Group 8, Step 
1, $23.00/hr. 

6. Mark Higgins 

 Placement 1.0 2nd Shift Custodian at Exton ES, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 
days/year, effective 11/9/22, Group 5, Step 2, $21.06/hr. 

    7. Charles Hills 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.4 

 
 Placement 1.0 3rd Shift Custodian at District, 8 hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 

days/year, effective TBD, Group 6, Step 2, $21.14/hr.  

    8. Babette Marchetti 

 Placement 1.0 Secretary to the Assistant Principals at Henderson HS, 7.5 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 262 days/year, effective TBD, Group 2, Step 
1, $20.75/hr. 

    9. Julie Sanders 

 Placement 1.0 Library/Office Assistant at .5 Hillsdale ES/.5 Mary C. Howse ES, 7 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 2, Step 
1, $20.75/hr. 

  10. Sadaayah Thomas 

    Placement 1.0 Special Education Paraprofessional at Westtown Thornbury ES, 7 
hrs./day, 5 days/week, 182 days/year, effective TBD, Group 1B, Step 
1, $17.00. 

 

f. Support Staff: Substitute 

1. Javette 
Stone 

Substitute Custodian, effective 11/28/22, $18.00/hr. 

 
III. Personnel Events 

a. Status Change 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

   1. Jacqueline 
Pavlo 

Administrative 1.0 Acting 
Principal at 
Mary C. Howse 
ES 

1.0 Principal at 
Mary C. Howse 
ES 

11/29/22, 
$123,814 

2. Tyler Zarr Support 1.0 Technology 
Specialist II at 
SEC 

1.0 Network 
Engineer at 
SEC 

TBD, Group 
11, Step 7, 
$38.20/hr. 

 
b. Involuntary Transfer - None 

 
c. Voluntary Transfer 

 
Name Type From To 

Effective 
Date 

1. Richard Clark Custodian 1.0 3rd Shift 
Custodian at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 Utility 
Custodian at 
Rustin HS 

11/14/22 

2. Robert Miller Professional 1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at 
Greystone ES 

1.0 
Health/Physical 
Education 
Teacher at 
Penn Wood ES 

TBD 

3. Carlton Tull Professional 1.0 Gifted/Math 
Specialist at 
Fern Hill ES 

1.0 Grade 4 
Teacher at 
Greystone ES 

TBD 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.5 

 
 

Name Type From To 
Effective 

Date 

4. Ashley 
Vanegas 

Professional 1.0 Grade 4 
Teacher at 
Greystone ES 

1.0 Instructional 
Coach at Fern 
Hill ES 

TBD 

5. Christopher 
Wyatt 

Custodian 1.0 Utility 
Custodian at 
Rustin HS 

1.0 Facilities 
Apprentice at 
Warehouse 

11/7/22 

 
IV. Personnel Leave 

a. Sabbatical Leave 

 Name Position Effective Date Ending Date 

1. Ashley 
Rathman 

1.0 Science 
Teacher at Peirce 
MS 

2023-2024 school 
year 

Last day of the 2023-
2024 school year. 

2. Kelly Subasic 1.0 Math Teacher 
at Fugett MS 

2nd Semester of the 
2022-2023 school 
year 

Last day of the 2022-
2023 school year 

 
b. Unpaid Leave - None 

 
V. Additional Information 

1. Sara Aubry’s last day in the district will be 12/2/22. 

2. Dr. Kristen Barnello should receive a $1,000 stipend for two months of work with 
additional responsibilities in the Teaching and Learning Department. 

3. Lindsay Carter’s last day in the District will be 12/2/22. 

4. Annemarie Collins’ start date was 10/31/22. 

5. Dr. Rebecca Eberly should receive a $1,000 stipend for two months of work with 
additional responsibilities in the Teaching and Learning Department. 

6. Kimberly Fanning’s start date for her new position as Secretary to Principal at 
Greystone ES was 10/31/22. 

7. Damon Gonzaga, Capital Program Manager, Salary is $111,974.75. 

8. Amanda Hale’s start date was 11/14/22. 

9. James Ronayne’s start date was 11/15/22. 

 10. MOU for Support Professionals Association agreement that “off chart” employees 
would receive a 3% raise every year of the CBA.  

 11. In accordance with the PA State Auditor’s recommendation, the following list of 
drivers, employed by our transportation contractors Krapf’s and On the Go Kids, 
require School Board approval.  The credentials and security clearances for each of 
these drivers has been verified to be in compliance with our transportation carrier 
contracts and have been vetted through the WCASD Transportation Office: 

 
KRAPF’S 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 

Michael Kononchik Driver 

 
ON THE GO KIDS 

FIRST NAME LAST NAME DRIVER/AIDE 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.6 

 
Edward Friel Driver 

Juliana Smith Aide 

 
VI. Tutoring 

Last Name First Name Location Position 

Bratton Heather HS Tutor 

Corr Maureen HS Tutor 

Dorsey Shanelle HS Tutor 

Gallagher Jennifer HS Tutor 

Gamble Morgan HS Tutoring Site Manager 

Hohwald Joan HS Tutor 

Jakubowski Candy HS Tutor 

Lewis Patrick HS Tutor 

Murphy Connor HS Tutor 

Rohe Roxana HS Tutor 

Rucci Angelique HS Tutor 

Semple Katharine HS Tutor 

Singer Rebecca HS Tutor 

Taylor Barbara HS Tutor 

Teague Kathleen HS Tutor 

Thomas John HS Tutor 

Wrightstone Makenzie HS Tutor/Homebound, 504 or 
Instruction in the Home Tutoring 

Abbott Shayna MS Tutor 

Barrett Mairead MS Tutoring Site Manager 

Brown Sarita MS Tutoring Site Manager/Tutor 

Corcoran Kathleen MS Tutor 

Crecco Stephanie MS Tutor 

Czerwinski Tara MS Tutor 

DeLeo Kimberly MS Tutor 

Dunn Michael MS Tutor 

Farrelly Susan MS Tutor 

Goebel Lauren MS Tutor 

Harrison Katherine MS Tutor 

Hutchinson Eileen MS Tutor 

Linstra Joelle MS Tutor 

Lockhart Nicole MS Tutor 

Neufer Kathleen MS Tutor 

Rucci Angelique MS Tutor 

Rushton Amanda MS Tutor 

Scarpato Kathleen MS Tutor 

Scolis Elizabeth MS Tutor 

Yost Loralynne MS Tutor 

Alder Karen ES Tutor 

Amen Ines ES Tutor 

Atwell Susan ES Tutor 

Baer Katherine ES Tutor 

Bengel Kristine ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.7 

 
Bowen Jacqueline ES Tutor 

Brisgone Nicole ES Tutor 

Brown Kristen ES Tutor 

Byrne Janice ES Tutor 

Cheney Kristen ES Tutor 

Cini Alanna ES Tutor 

Cinnamond Amanda ES Tutor 

Cotellese Alyssa ES Tutor 

Dailey Melissa ES Tutor 

DeAngelis Julia ES Tutor 

D’Antonio Jennifer ES Tutor 

Dougherty Sara ES Tutor 

Dunn Diana ES Tutor 

Faggiola Nicole ES Tutor 

Forbes Stephanie ES Tutor 

Flynn Danielle ES Tutor 

Giampalmi Lisa ES Tutor 

Gorrie Carolyn ES Tutor 

Jackson Susan ES Tutor 

Jilek Jacqueline ES Tutor 

Joseph Brianna ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 

Keys Amber ES Tutor 

Mastrilli Allison ES Tutor 

McBrearty Kristina ES Tutor 

Mercurio Harry ES Tutor 

Miller Kristen ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 

Morin Alyssa ES Tutor 

Nikish Elizabeth ES Tutor 

Noone Alyssa ES Tutor 

Panichelli Keely ES Tutor 

Petersheim Kyrstin ES Tutor 

Ramirez Dashira ES Tutor 

Rapoport Renee ES Tutor 

Renauro Amanda ES Tutor 

Robinson Amy ES Tutor 

Root Kara ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 

Runzer Martha ES Tutor 

Santangelo Michelle ES Tutor 

Schneider Melissa ES Tutor 

Seese Desiree ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 

Sheetz  Jennifer ES Tutor 

Sommer Christine ES Tutor/Tutoring Site Manager 

Sweeney Allison ES Tutor 

Thomas Amy ES Tutor 

Thompson Allison ES Tutor 

Treon Diane ES Tutor 

Tull Carlton ES Tutor 

Winfield Carrie ES Tutoring Site Manager 



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.8 

 
Yoder Joanne ES Tutor 

Zelinsky Stacy ES Tutor 

 
VII.  Supplementals 

     Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract 
Position 

Title 

’22-‘23 
Additions: Fall, Annual & Winter       

Atkins Christopher SMS Winter 1 100% $3,080.00 

Head 
Wrestling 
Coach 

Bond Molly SMS Annual 1 100% $2,772.00 
Drama 
Sponsor 

Buckley Abigail SWE Annual 1 100% $924.00 

Reading 
Olympics - 
Flex 

Grant Rohan RHS Winter 3 100% $3,780.00 
Asst. Track 
Coach 

Hazzouri Natasha RHS Winter 1 100% $3,696.00 

Asst. 
Swimming 
Coach 

Johnson Bryan HHS Winter 13 100% $5,172.00 
Asst. Track 
Coach 

Miller Dave FMS Annual 1 50% $1,386.00 
Drama 
Sponsor 

Richards Kaylin FMS Annual 1 50% $1,386.00 
Drama 
Sponsor 

Rosenthal Kaylie EHS Annual 1 100% $2,156.00 
Debate 
Sponsor 

Seaman Brannon SMS Winter 5 100% $2,592.00 

Asst. 
Wrestling 
Coach 

Tashie Marc SMS Winter 2 100% $2,464.00 

Asst. 
Wrestling 
Coach 

Teodecki Geena EXE Annual 2 100% $2,464.00 
Art Club - 
Flex 

Turner Kerri EGE Annual 1 100% $924.00 

Student 
Council - 
Flex 

Tykwinski Paulette EGE Annual 1 100% $1,848.00 
News Crew 
- Flex 

Walls Damian EGE Annual 1 100% $2,772.00 

After 
School 
Intramurals 

        

‘22-‘23 Removals:        



Recommendations 
Supplement to the Agenda – November 28, 2022 - p.9 

 

     Last Name First Name Location Season Year 
% of 

Contract 
Total 

Contract 
Position 

Title 

Johnson David HHS Winter 8 100% $5,152.00 

Asst. Girls 
Basketball 
Coach 

        

’22-’23 Adjustments:       

Atkins John PMS Annual N/A 100% $3,612.00 

Subject 
Chair: 
Science 

Gamble Morgan HHS Annual N/A 100% $3,458.40 

Subject 
Chair: 
Counseling 

 

 



 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Education Committee 
 November 28, 2022 

Action Items 
 

 

Approval to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 

 Henderson HS – Class of 2002 Book Scholarship 

 Henderson HS – South Asian Student Association 

 Henderson HS – Women in Business 
 
Approval is requested to establish the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• Henderson HS – Class of 2002 Book Scholarship 
• Henderson HS – South Asian Student Association 
• Henderson HS – Women in Business 

 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 
 Henderson HS – F.B.L.A. Henderson 

 
Approval is requested to terminate the following Student Activity Account(s): 

• Henderson HS – F.B.L.A. Henderson 

 
I so move. 

 
 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 

 East High School Model UN Club – Washington, DC, 2/16-2/19/2023 
 Henderson High School Model UN – Philadelphia, PA, 1/26-1/29/2023 
 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools German Club – Berlin, 

Germany, 6/22-7/1/2023 
 Rustin High School Marching Band – Oahu, Hawaii, 12/4-12/11/2022 
 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools French – Quebec City, 

Canada, 6/26-6/30/2023 
 Henderson High School Music Department – Boston, MA, 3/30-4/2/2023 
 Rustin High School Girls Cross Country PIAA Championship – 

Hershey, PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 
 Henderson High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – 

Hershey, PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 
 East High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, 

PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 
 Henderson High School X-Caliber – Wilks, PA, 12/16-12/17/2022 

 
Approval is requested of the following Study/Excursion trip(s):  



 
 
Education Committee -2- November 28, 2022 

 
 
 

 East High School Model UN Club – Washington, DC, 2/16-2/19/2023 

 Henderson High School Model UN – Philadelphia, PA, 1/26-1/29/2023 

 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools German Club – Berlin, Germany, 6/22-
7/1/2023 

 Rustin High School Marching Band – Oahu, Hawaii, 12/4-12/11/2022 

 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools French – Quebec City, Canada, 6/26-
6/30/2023 

 Henderson High School Music Department – Boston, MA, 3/30-4/2/2023 

 Rustin High School Girls Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-
11/5/2022 

 Henderson High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-
11/5/2022 

 East High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-
11/5/2022 

 Henderson High School X-Caliber – Wilks, PA, 12/16-12/17/2022 
 

I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Revised Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/ 
Individuals, Second Reading  
 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/ 
Individuals, Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of Revised Policy 913.2 – Dissemination by Nonschool 
Organizations, Groups or Individuals (formerly known as Distribution or 
Posting of Nonschool Organizations, Groups or Individuals) Second Reading  
 
Approval is requested of Revised Policy Dissemination by Nonschool Organizations, Groups or 
Individuals (formerly known as Distribution or Posting of Nonschool Organizations, Groups or 
Individuals), Second Reading 
 
I so move. 
 
 

Approval of 2023-2024 School Calendar, First Reading 

 
Approval is requested of the 2023-2024 School Calendar, First Reading. 
 
I so move. 



 

 

 

 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Education Committee  
  

November 14, 2022 
Spellman Education Center Board Room 

Start: 6:38 pm – Finish: 8:25 pm  
 

 
Attending Committee Members:  

 ☒ Kate Shaw (Edu. Chair)  ☒ Joyce Chester ☒ Daryl Durnell  ☒ Laura Detre 

 
Other Board Members: 

  ☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☐ Karen Fleming ☒ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan ☒ Stacey Whomsley 

 
Administration: 

☒ Robert Sokolowski ☒  Kalia Reynolds ☐ Wayne Birster ☒  Melissa Kleiman ☒  Una Martin 

☒  Sara Missett ☐  John Scully    ☐  Jeff Ulmer  ☒  Michael Wagman 

 
Public Comment:  

Name Agenda Item 

Jeannine Hiester Equity 

Amy Ficarra Health & Safety Plan 

Judi Di Fonzo Equity 

Melissa Bennett Equity 

 
Items on Agenda: 

 Approval of October 10, 2022 Combined Education and Pupil Services Committee Meeting 
Minutes  

 Collegium Progress Update 

 Approval of 2023-24 Board Calendar, First Reading 

 RFP for After-School Programming 

 Equity Update 

 Health & Safety Plan Review 
 
Education Committee Actions/Outcomes to be placed on November 28, 2022 Board Agenda 
for Approval: 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of October 10, 2022 Combined Education and Pupil Services 
Committee Meeting Minutes 4-0 

Approval of 2023-24 Board Calendar, First Reading 
4-0 

 
 
 
 



Education Committee Minutes 
-2- 

November 14, 2022 

 
 
 

November Education Committee Consent Agenda Items: 
 

Approval to establish:  

 Henderson HS – Class of 2002 Book Scholarship 

 Henderson HS – South Asian Student Association 

 Henderson HS – Women in Business Henderson HS - E Sports 
 

Approval to terminate: 
 

 Henderson HS – F.B.L.A. Henderson 
 
Approval of the following Study/Excursion trip(s): 
 

 East High School Model UN Club – Washington, DC, 2/16-2/19/2023 

 Henderson High School Model UN – Philadelphia, PA, 1/26-1/29/2023 

 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools German Club – Berlin, Germany, 6/22-7/1/2023 

 Rustin High School Marching Band – Oahu, Hawaii, 12/4-12/11/2022 

 Rustin, Henderson, and East High Schools French – Quebec City, Canada, 6/26-6/30/2023 

 Henderson High School Music Department – Boston, MA, 3/30-4/2/2023 

 Rustin High School Girls Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 

 Henderson High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-
11/5/2022 

 East High School Boys Cross Country PIAA Championship – Hershey, PA, 11/4-11/5/2022 

 Henderson High School X-Caliber – Wilks, PA, 12/16-12/17/2022 
 
Approval of the following Revised Policy, 2nd Reading 

 Policy 913– Nonschool Organizations/Groups/Individuals 

 Policy 913.2 – Dissemination by Nonschool Organizations, Groups or Individuals (formerly 
known as Distribution or Posting of Nonschool Organizations, Groups or Individuals 

 
Items to be discussed at a later date: None 
 































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Nonschool Organizations/Groups/Individuals

Code 913

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised March 23, 2020

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
Any requests from nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals seeking to have students participate
in nonschool-sponsored activities, awards, or scholarships shall be governed by this policy.
 
Definitions
 
Dissemination – any non-school organizations, groups, or individuals distributing or publicly
displaying non-school materials to others:
 
1. On school property or during school-sponsored events; placing such material upon desks,
tables, on or in lockers, walls, doors, bulletin boards, or easels; by handing out such
materials to other persons; or engaging in any other manner of delivery of nonschool written
materials to others while on school property or during school functions; or
 
2. At any time or location when creating, posting, or sending information using technical or
digital resources owned, provided, or sponsored by the district.
 
When email, text messaging, or other technological delivery is used as a means of
distributing or accessing nonschool written materials via use of school equipment or while on
school property or at school functions, it shall be governed by Board policy.[2][3]
 
Nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals - those entities that are not part of the school
program, school-sponsored activities, or organized pursuant to the Pennsylvania School Code or Board
policy. When employees or Board members act on behalf of a nonschool organization or group, or on
their own behalf, this policy applies to them. Students are governed by a separate and distinct Board
policy regarding student expression and distribution and posting of materials.[1]
 
Nonschool materials - any printed, technological, digital, or written materials, regardless of form,
source or authorship, prepared by nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals for posting or
general distribution which are not prepared as a part of the curricular or approved extracurricular
programs of the district. This includes such things as fliers, invitations, announcements, pamphlets,
posters, Internet bulletin boards, nonschool organization websites, and the like.
 



Nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals - those entities that are not part of the school
program, school-sponsored activities, or organized pursuant to the Pennsylvania School Code or Board
policy. When employees or Board members act on behalf of a nonschool organization or group, or on
their own behalf, this policy applies to them. Students are governed by a separate and distinct Board
policy regarding student expression and distribution and posting of materials.[1]
 
Distribution - issuing nonschool materials to others on school property or during school-sponsored
events; placing upon desks, tables, on or in lockers; or engaging in any other manner of delivery of
nonschool written materials to others while on school property or during school functions. When email,
text messaging, or other technological delivery is used as a means of distributing or accessing
nonschool written materials via use of school equipment or while on school property or at school
functions, it shall be governed by Board policy.[2][3]
 
Posting - publicly displaying nonschool materials on school property or at school-sponsored events,
including but not limited to affixing such materials to walls, doors, bulletin boards, easels, the outside of
lockers, on district-sponsored websites, through other district-owned technology and the like. 
 
Prohibited activities and materials shall mean activities and materials that:

1. Violate federal, state or local laws, Board policy or district rules or regulations.;

2. Are  libelous, defamatory, obscene, lewd, vulgar or profane.;

3. Advocate for the use or advertise the availability of any substance or material that may
reasonably be believed to constitute a direct and serious danger to the health or welfare of
students, such as tobacco/nicotinevaping products, alcohol or illegal drugs.;

4. Incite violence,  advocate use of force or threaten serious harm to the school or community.;

5. Are likely to or do materially or substantially disrupt or interfere with the educational process,
such as school activities, school work, or discipline, as well as safety and order on school property
or at school functions.;

6. Interfere with, or advocate interference with, the rights of any individual or the safe and orderly
operation of the schools and their programs.; or 

7. Violate written district administrative regulations or procedures on time, place and manner for
posting and distribution dissemination of otherwise protected expression. 
 

Posting and distribution Dissemination by nonschool organizations, groups or individuals is governed
by Board Policy 913.2.[3]
 
Authority
 
It is the policy of the Board that district facilities be used in accordance with the guidelines established
in Board policy.[4]
 
The Board prohibits dissemination of nonschool materials for the purpose of advertisement or
promotion by nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals during instructional time or at school-
sponsored locations or activities not otherwise open to nonschool organizations, groups, or individuals.
[5][6]
 
The district may enter into sponsorship and advertising agreements with outside entities in accordance
with Board policy.[7]
 
Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall develop administrative guidelines to implement this
policy (913AG1).  be responsible for carrying out the provisions of this policy, unless otherwise

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0


specifically noted in this policy.
 
Guidelines
 
The Superintendent or his/her designee will be responsible for developing guidelines for this policy
(913AG1).

Legal 1. Pol. 220

2. Pol. 913

3. Pol. 913.2

4. Pol. 707

5. 24 P.S. 510

6. 24 P.S. 511

7. Pol. 913.1

24 P.S. 775

24 P.S. 779

Pol. 000

Pol. 240

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=75&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=7&sctn=79&subsctn=0


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Book Policy Manual

Section 900 Community

Title Dissemination by Nonschool Organizations, Groups or Individuals (new name)

Code 913.2

Status Second Reading

Adopted August 1, 2015

Last Revised March 23, 2020

Last Reviewed July 27, 2015

Purpose
 
The purpose of this policy is to improve communication with parents/guardians by distributing or
posting disseminating information that, while not necessarily generated by the schools, may be
beneficial to students. Any requests from nonschool organizations, groups or individuals seeking to have
students participate in or be informed of the opportunity to participate in nonschool-sponsored activities
shall be governed by this policy.
 
Any organization or person seeking to distribute disseminate information on school property must
have approval by the Superintendent or designee.
 
Activities or school-related information and materials from nonschool organizations, groups or
individuals that are integrated with or presented as part of the district’s curriculum or an approved
school event or student organization are approved and governed by Board polices related to curriculum
and student activities, and are not governed by this policy.[1][2][3]
 
Definitions
 
Dissemination – any non-school organizations, groups, or individuals distributing or publicly displaying
non-school materials to others:
1. On school property or during school-sponsored events; placing such material upon desks, tables, on
or in lockers, walls, doors, bulletin boards, or easels; by handing out such materials to other persons; or
engaging in any other manner of delivery of nonschool written materials to others while on school
property or during school functions; or
2. At any time or location when creating, posting, or sending information using technical or digital
resources owned, provided, or sponsored by the district.
 
Nonschool organizations, groups or individuals - those entities that are not part of the school
program, school-sponsored activities, or organized pursuant to the Pennsylvania School Code or Board
policy. When employees or Board members act on behalf of a nonschool organization or group, or on
their own behalf, this policy applies to them. Students are governed by other Board policy.[4]
 
Nonschool materials - any printed, technological, digital, or written materials, regardless of form,
source, or authorship prepared by nonschool organizations, groups or individuals for electronic



posting or general distribution which are not prepared as a part of the curricular or approved
extracurricular programs of the district. This includes such things as fliers, invitations, announcements,
pamphlets, posters, Internet bulletin boards, nonschool organization websites and the like.
 
Nonschool organizations, groups or individuals - those entities that are not part of the school
program, school-sponsored activities, or organized pursuant to the Pennsylvania School Code or Board
policy. When employees or Board members act on behalf of a nonschool organization or group, or on
their own behalf, this policy applies to them. Students are governed by other Board policy.[4]
 
Distribution - issuing nonschool materials to others on school property or during school-sponsored
events; placing upon desks, tables, on or in lockers; or engaging in any other manner of delivery of
nonschool materials to others while on school property or during school functions.
 
Posting - publicly displaying nonschool materials on school property or at school-sponsored events,
including but not limited to affixing such materials to walls, doors, bulletin boards, easels, the outside of
lockers, on district-sponsored websites, through other district-owned technology and the like.
 
Prohibited activities and materials - activities and materials which:

1. Are libelous, defamatory, obscene, lewd, vulgar, or profane.; 
 

2. Violate federal, state or local laws.; 
 

3. Violate Board policy or district regulations.; 
 

4. Advocate for the use or advertise the availability of any substance or material that may
reasonably be believed to constitute a direct and substantial danger to the health or welfare of
students, such as tobacco/vaping products nicotine, alcohol or illegal drugs.; 
 

5. Incite violence, advocate the use of force or threaten serious harm to the school or community.; 
 

6. Advocate use of force or urge violation of federal, state or municipal law, Board policy or district
regulations.; 
 

7. Interfere with, or advocate interference with, the rights of any individual or the safe and orderly
operation of the schools and their programs.; 
 

8. Are likely to or do materially or substantially disrupt or interfere with the educational process,
such as school activities, school work, or discipline, as well as safety and order on school property
or at school functions. 
 

9. Are political campaign materials.; or 
 

10. Violate written district administrative regulations or procedures on time, place and manner for
posting and distribution dissemination of otherwise protected speech.

Authority
 
It is the policy of the Board that district facilities be used in accordance with the guidelines established
in this Board policy.[5]
 
The Board prohibits the dissemination of nonschool materials for the purposes of advertisement
or promotion by nonschool organizations, groups or individuals during instructional time or at school-
sponsored locations or activities events not otherwise open to nonschool organizations, groups or
individuals.[6][7]
 
Fundraising, scholarships, awards, travel services, foreign trips, commercial activities, advertising, and
sponsorship are governed by other Board policies.
 

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0


Delegation of Responsibility
 
The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for carrying out the provisions of this policy, unless
otherwise specifically noted in this policy.
 
Guidelines
 
Distribution Dissemination of Nonschool Materials
 
In some cases, there may be a request to distribute disseminate printed nonschool materials on
school property or through district resources. Dissemination Distribution of printed nonschool
materials must be submitted to the Superintendent or his/her designee in writing along with a copy of
the printed nonschool materials. Nonschool materials for programs/events/activities that are not school-
sponsored must include the following disclaimer,: “The West Chester Area School District does not
sponsor or sanction this program/event/activity."
 
Requests for dissemination of nonschool materials through district social media channels
shall be addressed through Board policy on district social media. [8]
 
The Board directs that the review and consideration of any nonschool materials requested
under this policy shall not discriminate on the basis of content or viewpoint.
 
The district will only consider dissemination distribution of nonschool materials for: 
 

1. Nonprofit groups serving students in the West Chester Area School District.; 
 

2. PTOParent-teacher organizations, Home School Associations, and Bbooster groups serving
students in the West Chester Area School District.; and 
 

3. Events involving children and sponsored by municipalities in the West Chester Area School District.

Others may be considered for posting on the electronic bulletin board.
 
Requests must be submitted at least two (2) weeks prior to the requested dissemination distribution
date.
 
Once approval has been granted or denied, each building principal and secretary will receive a copy of
the printed nonschool material       indicating its approval status. Submitting organizations will also be
notified of the decision.
 
Upon approval of hard copy distribution, organizations must reproduce the printed nonschool material,
bundle them by classroom or as needed, and deliver them to each building. The district will provide the
organization with the classroom counts or enrollments upon approval, or earlier if requested.
 
If approval is granted, the nonschool organization shall comply with Board policy and
administrative regulations, and the district's time, place, and manner restrictions
for dissemination of materials.
 
Nonschool materials shall not be disseminated during instructional time or school-sponsored
activities.
 
 
Posting - Electronic Bulletin Board
 
Requests for permission to post to the district electronic bulletin board must be via email with a copy of
the requested nonschool material attached and forwarded to the Superintendent or his/her designee.
Nonschool material for programs/events/activities that are not school-sponsored must include the
following disclaimer,: “The West Chester Area School District does not sponsor or sanction this
program/event/activity."

https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/wche/Board.nsf/Public


 
The district prohibits all posting on school property, other than to the district’s electronic bulletin board
or as otherwise permitted herein.
 
Non-Interference Wwith School Distributions Dissemination
 
The distribution dissemination of nonschool materials shall not be permitted to interfere with
the distribution dissemination  of school-related materials.
 
Exception for Polling Places
 
This policy shall not apply to the portion of a school that is in use on an election day as a polling
location. Campaign and related political materials may be distributed disseminated and placed upon
school grounds at such location on an election day, as permitted by law and/or Board policy.
 
Distribution/Posting Dissemination in Accordance Wwith Law
 
The district's distribution or posting of nonschool materials shall conform to federal and state laws and
regulations.
 
No Vested Right or Contractual Relationship
 
The Superintendent’s or his/her designee’s approval of the dissemination  distribution or posting of
materials for nonschool organizations, groups or individuals shall only pertain to a particular request and
shall confer no right to have future requests granted (as circumstances and procedures may change);
nor shall the Superintendent’s or his/her designee’s approval create any contractual obligation on behalf
of the district.
 
No Open Public Forum
 
By the adoption of this policy, the district does not intend to create an open public forum, as defined by
law, for access to district dissemination distribution or posting of materials. The provisions of this
policy will limit such dissemination distribution or posting.
 
Disclaimer
 
Permission to distribute or post disseminate materials does not signify an endorsement by the school
district.
 
The district reserves the right to approve or deny any request for electronic posting or physical
distribution dissemination of materials or products.
 

Legal 1. Pol. 105

2. Pol. 122

3. Pol. 230

4. Pol. 220

5. Pol. 707

6. 24 P.S. 510

7. 24 P.S. 511

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=10&subsctn=0
http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=1949&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=14&chpt=5&sctn=11&subsctn=0


23-24 Draft School Board Calendar First Reading 
November 28, 2022

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30

Total S-4, T-8 Total S-22, T-26 Total S-43, T-48 Total S-61, T-68

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31 31

Total S-77, T-84 Total S-98, T-105 Total S-118, T-125 Total S-136, T-143

Teacher Inservice, schools closed

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S S M T W R F S Half-Day, PM Teacher Inservice

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 Schools Closed

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 First Day of School

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 Last Day of School - Students & Staff

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 End of Marking Period

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 End of Trimesters

30 Parent Conferences
AM Teacher Conferences, PM schools closed

Total S-155, T-163 Total S-176, T-185 Total S-185, T-194

Labor Day Christmas Eve Ramadan

Rosh Hashana Christmas Day Easter

Yom Kippur New Year's Eve Eid Al Fitr 

Election Day New Year's Day Memorial Day

Diwali MLK Jr. Day Juneteenth

Thanksgiving President's Day

Days: Student 18/ Teacher 20

Days: Student 16/ Teacher 16 Days: Student 21/ Teacher 21 Days: Student 20/ Teacher 20 Days: Student 18/ Teacher 18

Holiday Date

Days: Student 4/ Teacher 8 Days: Student 18/ Teacher 18 Days: Student 21/ Teacher 22

Days: Student 19/ Teacher 20 Days: Student 21/ Teacher 22 Days: Student 9/ Teacher 9

Students: 185, Teacher: 194, 3 Snow Days Built in

Dec 31

Jan 1

Feb 19

November 2023

December 2023 January 2024 February 2024 March 2024

April 2024 May 2024 June 2024

August 2023 September 2023 October 2023

HolidayDate

Sep 25

Nov 7

Holiday Date

Nov 23

Jan 15

Mar 11

Mar 31

Apr 10

May 27

Jun 19Nov 12

Sep 4

Sep 16

Dec 24

Dec 25



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Pupil Services Committee 

November 28, 2022 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
 
Approval of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements 
Approval is requested of two (2) Special Education Settlement Agreements. 
 
I so move. 
 
 



 

 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Pupil Services Committee  

 
November 14, 2022 

Spellman Education Center Board Room A 
Start: 8:29 pm – Finish: 9:20 pm  

 
 
Attending Committee Members:  

 ☒ Kate Shaw (Chair)  ☒ Joyce Chester  ☒ Daryl Durnell  ☒ Laura Detre 

 
Other Board Members: 

  ☒ Gary Bevilacqua ☐ Karen Fleming ☒ Karen Herrmann ☒ Sue Tiernan ☒ Stacey Whomsley 

 
Administration: 

☒ Robert Sokolowski ☒  Kalia Reynolds ☐ Wayne Birster   ☐  Melissa Kleiman 

☒  Sara Missett ☒  John Scully    ☐  Jeff Ulmer 

 
Public Comment: None 
 
Items on Agenda: 

 

 Approval of October 10, 2022 Pupil Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

 Mental Health Supports and Statistics Presentation  
 

 Communication Department Presentation  
 

 
November Pupil Services Committee Actions/Outcomes: 

Agenda Item Vote 

Approval of the October 10, 2022 Pupil Services Committee Meeting 
Minutes 4-0 

 
Board Consent Agenda Items: None 

 
 
 
Items to be discussed at a later date: None 
 



 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property & Finance Committee 
November 28, 2022 – ACTION ITEMS 

 
 

Approval of Resolution to Implement Act 57 of 2022 
  
Approval is requested of the Resolution to Implement Act 57 of 2022 Property Tax 
Penalty Waiver Provisions. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of Updated Capital Plan 
 
Approval is requested of the updated Capital Plan. 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of 2023-2024 Capital Reserve Project 
 
Approval is requested of the 2023-24 Capital Reserve project listed below:  
 
Project  Description  Vendor  Project 

Budget  
Award 
Amount  

G-163 Two- artificial turf fields, East 
High School  

Keystone 
Sports 
Construction  

$3,500,000  $3,425,848  

 
I so move. 
 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

November 21, 2022 – Property & Finance Committee 
 
Attending Committee Members:  Director Bevilacqua-Chair, Director Fleming, Director 
Herrmann, Director Whomsley 
Other Board Members:  Director Chester, Director Detre, Director Durnell, Director 
Shaw, Director Tiernan  
Administration:  Mr. John Scully, Dr. Robert Sokolowski, Mr. Wayne Birster, Mr. Justin 
Matys, Mr. Mark Groves, Mr. Michael Wagman 
Also Present:  Members of the public 
 
Action or outcomes from the meeting:  (Unless noted, all votes were 4-0.) 
Public Comment was made by the following residents on agenda items as indicated: 
 None  
The committee approved the October 17, 2022 Property & Finance 
Committee Minutes. 

Mr. 
Bevilacqua 

Mr. Scully reviewed the Budget Forecast Model and advised the Committee 
that changes to the 2022-23 expense projections include decreases related 
to transportation expenses of $700,000 and a reduction in charter school 
tuition of $250,000.  Changes to the 2022-23 revenues include an increase 
in current real estate taxes of $1,400,000, EIT of $500,000, and an 
increase in investment earnings of $500,000. The changes to the 2022-23 
projection resulted in an increase in fund balance designation for future 
millage increases of $3,350,000.  Mr. Scully advised the Committee that 
this month’s model includes updated budget salary figures for the 2023-24 
school year. The updates include actual budgeted salary amounts for 
existing employees as well as staffing additions for 2023-24.  The changes 
to the 2023-24 expense projections include an increase in salaries for 
existing staff in the amount of $1,034,536 and an increase in salaries 
related to new staffing in the amount of $3,433,795. The increase related 
to new staffing was partially offset by a reduction in professional and tech 
services of $1,188,047.  The total net increase to the 2023-24 expenses 
total $3,280,284. Changes to the 2023-24 revenue projections include an 
increase in State subsidy of $397,529 related to social security and PSERs. 
The net of all changes in November resulted in a 2023-24 budget gap 
decrease of $467,245. The Administration will continue to review 
projections for potential savings to reduce the millage impact for the 2023-
24 Budget.  This is an informational item and no Board action is required. 

Mr. Scully 

Mr. Scully presented information on Act 57 of 2022 which took effect on 
October 10, 2022 and amended the Local Tax Collection Law utilized by 
the District to enforce property tax collection.  Act 57 requires districts that 
impose taxes on real property to adopt a resolution or ordinance within 90 
days of the effective date of Act 57, directing the tax collector to waive 
penalty charges for real estate taxes in limited and certain circumstances 
for tax years which begin on or after January 1, 2023.  The resolution will 
allow the District to waive penalties for taxpayers who did not receive a tax 
bill on a property they acquired within the 12-month window prior to 
WCASD’s issuance of a tax bill.  The original Local Tax Collection language 
stated: “Failure to receive notice shall not relieve any taxpayer from the 

Mr. Scully 



payment of any taxes imposed by any taxing district, and such taxpayer 
shall be charged with his taxes as though he had received notice.” 
Once approved the Resolution will allow the WCASD tax collectors the 
ability to waive penalties for property owners provided property owners 
follow the stipulations required within the Resolution. 
The committee recommended approval of Resolution Act 52 of 2022. 
Mr. Birster and Mr. Scully provided the Committee with an update to the 
20-year Capital Plan.  Mr. Scully advised the committee that the last 
formal presentation of the capital plan occurred in 2018 when the decision 
was made to build Greystone elementary. Mr. Scully provided an overview 
of the process and the timeline for gathering the data for new housing 
starts from the municipalities. Mr. Scully reviewed the current District 
enrollment and advised the committee that based on the pending and 
approved residential new housing plans within municipalities, the District 
could see an additional 1,672 new units over the next few years. Mr. Scully 
reviewed the 5-year anticipated enrollment projections which include 
assumptions based on birth rates, cohort movement and students from 
new housing. The projections indicate an increase over 5 years of 488 
students K-12. Mr. Birster reviewed the current and future operational 
capacities of the buildings. Mr. Birster reviewed the long-term capital 
project list, cost estimates and timeline.  Mr. Birster advised the 
committee that the cost estimates do include inflationary increases due to 
the passage of time until project completion dates. Mr. Scully reviewed the 
debt service borrowing schedules and advised the committee that the 
annual debt service payments associated with the proposed long-term 
capital plan do not exceed 10% of our operating budget in accordance with 
Board Policy. The Committee discussed the process for prioritizing projects 
and the concerns around safety. The Committee recommended approval of 
the updated 20-year Capital Plan. 

Mr. Birster/ 
Mr. Scully 

Mr. Birster reviewed the bid award for the 2023-2024 Capital Reserve 
Project listed below: 
Project  Description  Vendor  Project 

Budget  
Award 
Amount  

G-163 Two- artificial turf fields, East 
High School  

Keystone 
Sports 
Construction  

$3,500,000  $3,425,848  

Keystone Sports Construction is a Costar participant.  The entire project 
budget of $3,500,000 is needed in order to employ professional services to 
assist with the project and respond to any unforeseen changes in the 
project scope. 
The Committee recommended approval of the bid award for the 2023-24 
Capital Reserve project. 

Mr. Birster 

Items to be placed on board agenda November 28, 2022: 
• Approval of Resolution to Implement Act 57 of 2022 
• Approval of Updated Capital Plan 
• Approval of 2023-24 Capital Reserve Project Award 
 
Items to discuss at a later date: 

Next Meeting Date:   December 19, 2022 



1 
 

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Resolution 
To Implement Act 57 of 2022  

Property Tax Penalty Waiver Provisions 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the West Chester Area School District (“School District”) is a 
taxing district under the Local Tax Collection Law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the School District adopts is annual budget on or before June 30 

of each year, and issues its real estate tax bills thereafter on or about July 1 of 
each year; and  

 
WHEREAS, Act 57 of 2022 (“Act 57”), amending the Local Tax Collection 

Law, was signed by Governor Wolf on July 22, 2022, and took effect on October 
10, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, Act 57 requires taxing districts that impose taxes on the 
assessed value of real property to adopt a resolution or ordinance within 90 days 
of the effective date of Act 57, directing the tax collector to waive additional 
charges for real estate taxes in limited and certain circumstances, where the 
taxpayer has complied with the requirements of Act 57; and 

 
WHEREAS, Act 57 requires the School District to adopt a resolution to 

require its real estate tax collector(s) to waive certain additional charges for real 
estate taxes in limited and certain circumstances, subject to a taxpayer’s 
compliance with the requirements of Act 57, for the tax years which begin on or 
after January 1, 2023.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the tax collector(s) of the West 
Chester Area School District shall comply with the provisions of Act 57 and this 
Resolution for the tax years which begin on or after January 1, 2023, which in the 
case of the School District will be the tax years beginning on or after July 1, 2023. 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following words and phrases shall have the 
meanings given to them within this Resolution unless the context clearly indicates 
otherwise: 

 
• Additional charge: any interest, fee, penalty, or charge accruing to and in 

excess of the face amount of the real estate tax as provided in the real estate 
tax notice. 
 



2 
 

• Qualifying event:  
1. For the purposes of real property, the date of transfer of ownership. 
 
2. For manufactured or mobile homes, the date of transfer of 
    ownership or the date a lease agreement commences for the original 
    location or relocation of a manufactured or mobile home on a parcel 
    of land not owned by the owner of the manufactured or mobile 
    home. The term does not include the renewal of a lease for the same 
    location. 

 
• Tax Collector: The elected tax collector for the West Chester Area School 

District, any authorized or designated delinquent tax collector, the Chester 
County Tax Claim Bureau, the Delaware County Tax Claim Bureau or any 
alternative collector of taxes as provided for in the Act of July 7, 1947 (P.L. 
1368, No. 542), known as the “Real Estate Tax Sale Law,” an employee, 
agent, or assignee authorized to collect the tax, a purchaser of claim for the 
tax or any other person authorized by law or contract to secure collection of, 
or take any action at law or in equity against the person or property of the 
taxpayer for the real estate tax or amounts, liens, or claims derived from the 
real estate tax. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the tax collector(s) shall, for tax years beginning 

on or after July 1, 2023, grant a request to waive additional charges for the late 
payment of real estate taxes for a particular property, if the taxpayer does all of 
the following: 

 
A. Provides a waiver request of additional charges, on a form provided by the 

state Department of Community and Economic Development, to the tax 
collector in possession of the claim within twelve (12) months of a qualifying 
event; 
 

B. Attests that the real estate tax notice was not received;  
 

C. Provides the tax collector in possession of the claim with one of the following: 
 

1. A copy of the deed showing the date of real property transfer; or 
 

2. A copy of the title following the acquisition of a mobile or manufactured 
home subject to taxation as real estate showing the date of issuance 
or a copy of an executed lease agreement between the owner of a 
mobile or manufactured home and the owner of a parcel of land on 
which the mobile or manufactured home will be situated showing the 
date the lease commences; and 
 

1708775.1 1708775.1 



3 
 

D. Pays the face value amount of the tax notice for the real estate tax with the 
waiver request. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that a tax collector that accepts a waiver and 

payment in good faith in accordance with Act 57 and with this Resolution shall not 
be personally liable for any amount due or arising from the real estate tax that is 
the subject in the waiver. 

 
 
ENACTED AND RESOLVED, this ___ day ____________, 2022. 
 

ATTEST:     WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 
_________________________ By:______________________________ 
Secretary          President 



West Chester Area 
School District
Capital Plan Update
November 2022

Wayne Birster

John Scully



Table of 
Contents

 Section 1 – Student Enrollments 
 Current Enrollments
 New Housing Starts
 Future Enrollment Estimates

 Section 2 – Building Capacities  
 Current and Anticipated

 Section 3 – Capital Project List
 Cost of Projects
 Timeline

 Section 4 – Debt Service



Section 1- Current Enrollment 2022-23



Section 1 – New Housing Starts

Apartment Units Carriage Homes
Single Family 

Homes Townhomes Total
Additional Housing 

Units
724 245 302 401 1672

5 Year projected increase in housing starts based on approved development plans from WCASD townships



Section 1 – New Housing Starts

Municipality Location

Balance to 
be 
completed Type Bedrooms Unit Count

East Bradford Township Daily Local News Property 50% Carriage Houses 3 or 4 56
East Bradford Township Darlington Ridge 25% Carriage Houses 3 or 4 26.5
Thornbury Township -DC 183 Locksley Rd New Single Family 4 22
Thornbury Township -DC 594 Cheyney Road Single Family 4 16
West Chester Borough Rubenstein Property Apartment Units 1 270
West Chester Borough Melton Center 75% Apartment Units 1 or 2 30.75
West Chester Borough Melton Center 75% Townhomes 3 or 4 7.5
West Goshen Township Goshen Walk - 5 Points Road New Single Family 4 16
West Goshen Township Woodlands at Greystone 33% Carriage Homes 3 or 4 36.3
West Goshen Township Woodlands at Greystone 33% Single Family 4 49.83
West Goshen Township Woodlands at Greystone 33% Single Family 4 9.24
West Goshen Township Woodlands at Greystone 33% Townhomes 2 or 3 15.84



Section 1 – New Housing Starts

Municipality Location

Balance to 
be 
completed Type Bedrooms Unit Count

West Whiteland 1364 Grove Road Single Family 4 8
West Whiteland Dunwoody Drive 25% Carriage Homes 3 or 4 27
West Whiteland Hanover Exton Square 25% Apartment Units 1 or 2 85.5
West Whiteland Exton Knoll - Rte 30 ( SSPJ & Church Farm) Carriage Homes 3 or 4 99
West Whiteland 740 Livingston Lane 25% Single Family 4 0.5
West Whiteland NVR Homes - Rte 30 ( Ship and Laborers) Single Family 4 95
West Whiteland 740 Livingston Lane 50% Townhomes 2 or 3 70
West Whiteland Exton Knoll - Rte 30 ( SSPJ & Church Farm) Townhomes 3 or 4 220
West Whiteland NVR Homes - Rte 30 ( Ship and Laborers) Townhomes 3 or 4 68
West Whiteland 301 West Lincloln Highway 25% Apartment Units 1 60
West Whiteland 350 and 385 Creamery Way 25% Apartment Units 1 or 2 72.75
West Whiteland Main Street at Exton 50% Apartment Units 1 205
Westtown Jacqueline Drive Single Family 4 18
Westtown Stokes Estate New Single Family 4 68
Westtown S. Concord Road (Saw Mill Crt) New Twin Homes 3 or 4 20

Total 1672.71



Section 1 – Future Enrollment over 5 Years 
– Based on Births and Approved Housing Starts

Ea
st

 B
ra

d
fo

rd

Ea
st

 G
os

h
en

Ex
to

n

Fe
rn

 H
ill

G
le

n
 A

cr
es

G
re

ys
to

n
e

H
ill

sd
al

e

M
C

 H
ow

se

P
en

n
 W

oo
d

S
ta

rk
w

ea
th

er

W
es

tt
ow

n
-T

h
or

n
b

u
ry

El
em

en
ta

ry
 S

u
b

to
ta

l

Fu
g

et
t 

M
S

P
ei

rc
e 

M
S

S
te

ts
on

 M
S

Ea
st

 H
S

H
en

d
er

so
n

 H
S

R
u

st
in

 H
S

S
ec

on
d

ar
y 

S
u

b
to

ta
l

TO
TA

L

2023-24 455     515   473   385    483   565   552    507   452   604   548   5,539 931     994     826     1,294 1,461 1,205 6,711 12,250 

2024-25 455     528   511   386    482   557   537    495   455   590   543   5,539 968     1,061 857     1,278 1,447 1,187 6,798 12,337 

2025-26 453     531   550   365    473   582   545    511   445   609   544   5,608 1,038 1,051 876     1,294 1,430 1,193 6,882 12,490 

2026-27 440     561   572   365    468   583   554    527   428   615   555   5,668 1,049 1,083 911     1,335 1,403 1,174 6,955 12,623 

2027-28 444     575   597   341    474   608   551    527   436   642   576   5,771 1,117 1,057 868     1,317 1,430 1,178 6,967 12,738 



Section 2 – Building Capacities

E
as

t B
ra

d
fo

rd

E
as

t G
o

sh
en

E
xt

o
n

F
er

n
 H

ill

G
le

n
 A

cr
es

G
re

ys
to

n
e

H
ill

sd
al

e

M
ar

y 
C

. H
o

w
se

P
en

n
 W

o
o

d

S
ta

rk
w

ea
th

er

W
es

tt
o

w
n

-T
h

o
rn

b
u

ry

T
o

ta
l E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

F
u

g
et

t

P
ie

rc
e

S
te

ts
o

n

T
o

ta
l M

id
d

le
 S

ch
o

o
l

E
as

t

H
en

d
er

so
n

R
u

st
in

T
o

ta
l H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l

Operational 
Capacities 

Prior to 
Construction 421 538 562 492 562 562 562 492 492 633 562 5878 926 926 879 2731 1425 1493 1309 4227

Operational 
Capacities After 

Construction 421 538 562 492 562 562 562 562 492 681 562 5996 926 1038 879 2843 1425 1493 1309 4227

Increased Capacity 118 112 0



Section 3 – Capital Project List – Cost Estimates

Project Years Today's Cost With Inflation

Glen Acres Renovation and  Addition 2022-2025 23,500,000$         23,500,000$         

Mary C Howse  Renovation and Addition 2022-2027 22,000,000$         22,000,000$         

Hillsdale  Renovation and Addition 2022-2028 24,000,000$         24,000,000$         

Starkweather  Renovation and Addition 2024-2030 24,000,000$         24,000,000$         

Exton Remove Mods and Connector 2028-2031 1,500,000$            1,500,000$            

Henderson  New Field House 2027-2031 5,500,000$            5,500,000$            
Henderson Auditorium Renovation and 
Addition 2028-2032 7,000,000$            7,000,000$            

East Bleacher & Lockeroom 2028-2032 4,500,000$            4,500,000$            

Stetson Renovation 2029-2035 38,475,000$         46,679,955$         

Peirce   Renovation and Addition 2032-2038 40,025,000$         52,754,861$         

Henderson Renovation 2035-2042 81,795,000$         117,121,668$       

East Renovation 2040-2047 89,775,000$         147,581,350$       
Total 362,070,000$       476,137,834$       



Section 3 – Capital Project List – Estimated Timeline

20
22

-2
3

20
23

-2
4

20
24

-2
5

20
25

-2
6

20
26

-2
7

20
27

-2
8

20
28

-2
9

20
29

-3
0

20
30

-3
1

20
31

-3
2

20
32

-3
3

20
33

-3
4

20
34

-3
5

20
35

-3
6

20
36

-3
7

20
37

-3
8

20
38

-3
9

20
39

-4
0

20
40

-4
1

20
41

-4
2

Glen Acres Renovation 
and  Additions

Mary C Howse  
Renovations

Hillsdale  Renovation and 
Additions

Starkweather  Renovation 
and Additions

Exton Remove Mods and 
Connector

Henderson - New Field 
Houses

Henderson Auditorium 
Renovation and Addition

East Bleacher & Locker 
Room 

Stetson  Renovation

Peirce   Renovation and 
Addition

Henderson Renovations

East Renovations

Planning/ Schematic Design 
Design/ Approvals 
Active Construction 
Project Closeout 



Section 4 – Debt Service Estimates



Section 4 – Debt Service Estimates



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

November 28, 2022 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of School Board Treasurer’s Report and Statement of Disbursements 
Summary Schedule for the Period of October 1, 2022 to October 31, 2022 

 
The Treasurer’s Report includes the schedules of the School District’s cash balances 
for the General Fund, Activity/Trust Funds, and Cafeteria Fund; the investments 
schedule for the General Fund, Capital Reserve and Capital Project Funds; the 
schedule of disbursements for all funds, and the debit memos and check register for all 
funds. The Statement of Disbursements Summary Lists total expenditures by fund for 
the period.  
 
Approval is requested for the Treasurer’s Report and the disbursements listed on the 
Statement of Disbursements Summary for the period of October 1 to October 31, 2022 
totaling $18,842,935.38.  
 
 
I so move. 
 
 
 
 
The Treasurer’s Report is available in its entirety on the business office webpage and in 
the Board Meeting packet posted on School Board webpage at www.wcasd.net.  Please 
contact the School Board Secretary for any hard copies of the report. 
 
 
John T. Scully 
School Board Treasurer  
 
 
 

http://www.wcasd.net/


















































































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

November 28, 2022 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTION 
 

Approval of the October 31, 2022 Financial Report 
 

Approval is requested for the West Chester School District Financial Report for the month 
ending October 31, 2022.  
 
I so move. 
 
2022-23 General Fund Financial Analysis 
 
The expenses and revenues as of October 2022 represent 4 months of financial activity for the 
District. To date we have collected $181.5 million in real estate taxes which is $2.1 million over 
budget.   Our year to date interim tax collection total $629,000, we need to collect $171,000 
more to achieve our budget in that category. 
 
We have received local revenues totaling $193.4 million or 91.66% of our budget.  This amount 
is slightly ahead of last year as a % of total budget. Based on local revenues trends from the 
previous year, we have increased our revenue projections for earned income tax (EIT) by $2.3 
million, transfer tax by $863,700 and investment earnings by $1.3 million. The Governor did 
approve a PA state budget in June that included increases in state-wide Basic Education (BEF) 
and Special Education funding (SEF) that resulted in an increase in BEF of $1.4 million and an 
increase in SEF of $131,600. Transportation subsidy is calculated as a reimbursement formula 
based on the previous year’s actual costs; we have reduced our projected transportation 
subsidy by $137,600 due to decreased costs in the previous year.  We have also increased our 
federal revenues related to Medical Access by $76,000.    
 
On the expense side for 2022-23, we have revised our projections for salaries and benefits 
related to average teacher salary in the amount of $985,533, adjusted salary projections based 
on new headcount and attritional savings netting a decrease in salaries of $29,000, reduced 
professional and technical service for contracted aides by $200,000, reduced our charter school 
tuitions by $2.3 million due to lower than anticipated enrollment and tuition rates, reduced our 
transportation projections by $700,000 and revised our debt service expense in the amount of 
$100,000.   
 
And as you can see on the statement, we have budgeted $296.9 million in expenses and $263.4 
million in revenues this year and we budgeted to use $33.5 million of our fund balance to close 
the gap between the expenses and revenues.  
 
Our fund balance is projected to be $61.6 million at June 30th 2023, but we are anticipate using 
$27.1 million to reduce the tax increase for the 2023-24 school year.  
 
This concludes the financial report. 
 
 
John T. Scully, School Board Treasurer 
   



































WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

November 28, 2022 
 

Other Business 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
 
 
Approval of the revised Human Resources Job Description, 
Human Resources Specialist 
Approval is requested of the revised Human Resources Job Description, Human 
Resources Specialist 
 
I so move. 
 
Approval of the new Human Resources Job Description and 
Position, Human Resources Generalist 
Approval is requested of the new Human Resources Job Description and Position, 
Human Resources Generalist 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the new Human Resources Job Description and 
Position, Human Resources Lead Generalist 
Approval is requested of the new Human Resources Job Description and Position, 
Human Resources Lead Generalist 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of revised Technology Job Description, 
Communications Technician 
Approval is requested of the Job Description Communications Technician 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the new Pupil Services Job Description and 
Position, Registered Behavior Technician 
Approval is requested of the new Pupil Services Job Description and Position, 
Registered Behavior Technician 
 
I so move. 
 



Other Business -2- November 28, 2022 

 

 

  

Approval of 2022-23 Non-Bargaining Support Staff Salary 
Ranges 
Approval is requested of 2022-23 Non-Bargaining Support Staff Salary Ranges. 
  
I so move. 
 
Approval of Non-Bargaining Support Staff Compensation, 
Benefits, and Work Environment Guide for a five (5) year 
term beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2028.  
Approval is requested of the Non-Bargaining Support Staff Compensation, Benefits, and 
Work Environment Guide for a five (5) year term beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending 
on June 30, 2028. 
 
I so move. 
 
 
Approval of the Computer Design and Integration LLC (CDI) 
contract 
Approval is requested of the Computer Design and Integration LLC (CDI) contract for 
network services in the amount of $45,650. 
 
I so move. 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

Page 1 of 2 

 

POSITION TITLE: Human Resources Specialist DATE:  October 20, 2022 

DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources LOCATION:    Administration Building 

FLSA:   Exempt  (Non-Bargaining Staff)  

 

SUMMARY: 

The Human Resources Specialist is responsible for human resources functions that support 

the Lead Generalist and Generalist in all areas of HR. 

 

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS: 

• The Human Resources Specialist reports to the Director of Human Resources   

• Works cooperatively with administrators, supervisors, staff and others to perform job 

responsibilities as outlined. 

 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: 

1. 12 month (260-262 days) 7 hours daily  

2. Salary and benefits in accordance with the Non-Bargaining/Confidential unit of the 

West Chester Area School District 

 

QUALIFICATIONS & PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

To successfully perform this position, a person must be able to perform each essential duty 

satisfactorily. The qualification requirements listed below represent minimum levels of 

educational achievement, training, skill and/or ability necessary. 

 

• Bachelor’s degree in human resources or related field 

• Minimum of 1 year related work experience 

• Excellent communication skills 

• Strong attention to detail and follow through skills 

• Ability to act with integrity, professionalism and confidentiality 

• Proficient with Microsoft Office Suite 

• Proficiency with or ability to quickly learn the WCASD HRIS and talent management  

systems 

 

 

Qualified candidate will be required to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools or 

controls, and to talk and hear; Sit (80% of work day) and occasionally be required to stand, 

walk, stoop, kneel and crouch; Have specific vision abilities, to include close vision, color vision, 

and the ability to adjust focus;  Have the ability to lift and/or move up to 25 pounds; and 

possess effective communication, judgmental, planning and human relations skills, and will 

be required to work under periods of stress due to the level of the position responsibility. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:     

This list is intended to be illustrative rather than complete and serves to show major duties 

and responsibilities and does not express or imply that these are the only duties to be 

performed by the incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to be consistently 

at work and perform any other position-related duties requested by the supervisor. 

 

 



 
 

 

          Job Description – Human Resources Specialist (cont’d) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1. Enter all interview scores into the WCASD applicant tracking system.  

2. Meet with all newly hired staff to complete new hire on-boarding as well as follow up 

for outstanding documents. 

3. Ensure completion of Act 168 forms in database 

4. Attend job fairs 

5. Update and maintain HR website 

6. Updates and maintains employee status changes in all HR systems (Aesop, Vector 

Solutions, etc.) 

7. E-Finance data entry back up for Staffing/Personnel Assistant 

8. Assist Generalist with all aspects of hiring for summer programs 

9. Maintenance of file room to include filing, creating job files for every search, 

shredding of job files after one year has passed since fill date 

10. Assist Lead Generalist and Generalist with projects 

11. All other duties as assigned by the Assistant Director or Director of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

The West Chester Area School District is an equal 

opportunity employment, educational and service organization. 
 

 

ko  updated 4/03; CH 1/20, CM 10/22 

 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

Page 1 of 2 

 

POSITION TITLE: Human Resources Generalist DATE:  October 20, 2022 

DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources LOCATION:    Administration Building 

FLSA:   Exempt  (Non-Bargaining Staff)  

 

SUMMARY: 

The Human Resources Generalist is responsible for human resources functions include but 

not limited to hiring and onboarding of support staff, processing level change and tuition 

reimbursement requests, tracking compliance of mandatory trainings, manage and hire for all 

summer programs, and maintain Frontline absence management system for employees and 

campus users. 

 

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS: 

• The Human Resources Generalist reports to the Director of Human Resources  

• Works cooperatively with administrators, supervisors, staff and others to perform job 

responsibilities as outlined. 

 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: 

1. 12 month (260-262 days) 7 hours daily  

2. Salary and benefits in accordance with the Non-Bargaining/Confidential unit of the 

West Chester Area School District 

 

QUALIFICATIONS & PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

To successfully perform this position, a person must be able to perform each essential duty 

satisfactorily. The qualification requirements listed below represent minimum levels of 

educational achievement, training, skill and/or ability necessary. 

 

• Bachelor’s degree in human resources or related field 

• Minimum of 3 year related work experience 

• Ability to actwith integrity, professionalism, and confidentiality 

• Excellent communication and time management skills 

• Proficient with Microsoft Office Suite or related software 

• Proficiency with or ability to quickly learn the WCASD HRIS and talent management  

systems 

 

Qualified candidate will be required to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools or 

controls, and to talk and hear; Sit (80% of work day) and occasionally be required to stand, 

walk, stoop, kneel and crouch; Have specific vision abilities, to include close vision, color vision, 

and the ability to adjust focus;  Have the ability to lift and/or move up to 25 pounds; and 

possess effective communication, judgmental, planning and human relations skills, and will 

be required to work under periods of stress due to the level of the position responsibility. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:     

This list is intended to be illustrative rather than complete and serves to show major duties 

and responsibilities and does not express or imply that these are the only duties to be 

performed by the incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to be consistently 

at work and perform any other position-related duties requested by the supervisor. 

 



 
 

 

          Job Description – Human Resources Generalist (cont’d) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1. Post all support staff vacancies to the District web site and advertise as needed 

2. Participate in interview process of professional and support staff, as well as 

employees for all summer programs 

3. Meet with newly hired staff to complete hire paperwork; conduct & acquire 

background checks and employee eligibility verifications 

4. Process tuition reimbursement requests for all staff including receiving all supporting 

documentation, verifying eligibility, and creating report for payroll 

5. Verify and process annual level change requests; create report to provide payroll 

6. Manage all summer programs including posting vacancies, interviewing, making 

offers, hire paperwork for external employees, and preparing Board minutes  

7. Review, track, and document compliance with mandatory trainings 

8. Maintain/update job descriptions  

9. Maintain Frontline Absence Management System, including entering all new 

employees, creating campus user accounts, and approver profiles  

10. Act as a liaison with substitute provider to maintain building substitutes, PD 

coverage, and emergency certification processing 

11. Reconcile all invoices for HR provided by the substitute provider  

12. Attend job fairs  

13. All other duties as assigned by the Assistant Director or Director of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The West Chester Area School District is an equal 

opportunity employment, educational and service organization. 
 

 

ko  updated 4/03; CH 1/20, AP 10/22 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

Page 1 of 2 

 

POSITION TITLE: Human Resources Lead Generalist DATE:  October 20, 2022 

DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources LOCATION:    Administration Building 

FLSA:   Exempt  (Non-Bargaining Staff)  

 

SUMMARY: 

The Human Resources Lead Generalist is responsible for human resources functions to 

include but not limited to professional hiring and onboarding processes, supplemental 

contract hiring and onboarding processes, tracking for the Induction program, annual training 

and on-going clearance compliance. 

 

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS: 

• The Human Resources Lead Generalist reports to the Director of Human Resources 

  

• Works cooperatively with administrators, supervisors, staff and others to perform job 

responsibilities as outlined. 

 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: 

1. 12 month (260-262 days) 7 hours daily  

2. Salary and benefits in accordance with the Non-Bargaining/Confidential unit of the 

West Chester Area School District 

 

QUALIFICATIONS & PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

To successfully perform this position, a person must be able to perform each essential duty 

satisfactorily. The qualification requirements listed below represent minimum levels of 

educational achievement, training, skill and/or ability necessary. 

 

• Bachelor’s degree in human resources or related field 

• Minimum of 5 years related work experience 

• Excellent communication skills 

• Strong organizational and follow through skills; attention to detail 

• Ability to prioritize tasks and delegate when appropriate 

• Ability to act with integrity, professionalism and confidentiality 

• Proficient with Microsoft Office Suite 

• Proficiency with or ability to quickly learn the WCASD HRIS and talent management  

systems 

 

 

Qualified candidate will be required to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools or 

controls, and to talk and hear; Sit (80% of work day) and occasionally be required to stand, 

walk, stoop, kneel and crouch; Have specific vision abilities, to include close vision, color vision, 

and the ability to adjust focus;  Have the ability to lift and/or move up to 25 pounds; and 

possess effective communication, judgmental, planning and human relations skills, and will 

be required to work under periods of stress due to the level of the position responsibility. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

          Job Description – Human Resources Lead Generalist (cont’d) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:     

This list is intended to be illustrative rather than complete and serves to show major duties 

and responsibilities and does not express or imply that these are the only duties to be 

performed by the incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to be consistently 

at work and perform any other position-related duties requested by the supervisor. 

 

1. Post all professional vacancies to the District web site and when applicable, advertise 

to attract a diverse applicant pool 

2. Participate in the interview process for all professional searches 

3. Coordinate on-boarding process of all new professional employees 

4. Attend job fairs 

5. Maintain the electronic job description file 

6. Track the District Induction program for new certificated employees 

7. Ensure that all District employees maintain up to date clearance records as per the 

PA Department of Education requirements. 

8. Assist building personnel in creating and maintaining Act 48 records for all 

certificated employees 

9. Post, hire, on-board and prepare Board minutes for all supplemental contract 

positions according to the collective bargaining agreement. 

10. Review, track and document compliance with PDE mandated trainings. 

11. All other duties as assigned by the Assistant Director or Director of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

The West Chester Area School District is an equal 

opportunity employment, educational and service organization. 
 

 

ko  updated 4/03; CH 1/20, CM 10/22 

 



Page 1 of 3  

WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 

POSITION TITLE: Communications Technician 

DEPARTMENT: Technology 

FLSA: Non-Exempt (Support Staff-WCAESPA) 

DATE: November 9, 2022 

LOCATION: Administration Building 

 

SUMMARY: 

 Assists with the development, student and staff engagement, and public relations activities. 
Helps to organize district engagement events.  Designs and coordinates the production of 
district publications.  Assists in updating the website, oversees district's website content, 
and posting relevant information to social media. 

 
REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS: 

• Reports to the Digital Communications Coordinator 

• Works cooperatively with other administrators, supervisors, staff, parents and others 

to perform job responsibilities as outlined 

 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: 

1.        12 month (260-262 days) 
2. Salary (step/level placement) & Benefits are as described in the current Collective 

Bargaining Agreement. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS & PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

To successfully perform this position, a person must be able to perform each essential duty 

satisfactorily. The qualification requirements listed below represent minimum levels of 

educational achievement, training, skill and/or ability necessary. 

 

• Confidentiality and a high degree of professionalism required 

• Strong presentation, communication, computer, design and writing, verbal and written 

communication, organizational, and time management skills 

• Organized, creative thinker 

• Be able to work with varying levels of a school district from Board of Directors, 

Superintendent, Business Office, Transportation, School Administrators, etc. 

• Position requires problem-solving and interpersonal skills 

• Able to work independently 

• Experience with search engine optimization and web/social media analytics 

• Knowledge of photography and videography 

• Must possess a valid PA driver’s license 

 

Qualified candidate will be required to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools or 

controls, and to talk and hear; Sit (80% of work day) and occasionally be required to stand, 

walk, stoop, kneel and crouch; Have specific vision abilities, to include close vision, color vision, 

and the ability to adjust focus; Have the ability to lift and/or move up to 50 pounds; and 

possess effective communication, judgmental, planning and human relations skills, and will 

be required to work under periods of stress due to the level of the position responsibility. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
This list is intended to be illustrative rather than complete and serves to show major duties 

and responsibilities and does not express or imply that these are the only duties to be 

performed by the incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to perform any 

other position-related duties requested by the supervisor. 



Page 2 of 3  

 

 

 

Job Description – Communications 

Technician (cont’d) 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (cont’d) 

 

 Serve as Website ADA Coordinator and Create accessibility training materials  

 

 Serve as District Webmaster and assist in the management of school webmasters 

 

 Establish and manage the digital licenses in Google and Apple for the district app 

 

 Maintain, plan, develop, and expand the district and school pages of the website 

 

 Coordinates production and installation/publication of advertising working with various district 

departments and vendors 

 

 Designs and produces internal and external web and print publications as well as arrange for 

printing and distribution in a timely and cost-effective manner 

 

 Maintains tracking of budget contracts, invoices, and payments for the department 

 

 Assists with social media and website communication 

 

 Arrange with school staff and administrators to photograph district events 

 

 Promote stories in the media displaying a positive image and exposure for WCASD 

 

 Uses professional discretion to determine the urgency of media, district, and community  

requests and handles difficult and sensitive situations in a courteous and professional manner 

 

 Assists with the planning, promotion, organization, and execution of events, projects, and 

publications for the West Chester Area Educational Foundation and Preschool Parents Group  

 

 Assists principals and other administrators with communication needs, evaluate requests, 

and develops recommendations based upon district policies and best practice 

 

 Serve as support for the monthly district communication programming 

 

 Create online event registrations for Preschool Parents Group, Education Foundation, and 

other district-wide events 

 

 Creates and/or coordinates engaging marketing content including photos, district calendars, 

course selection/description guides, videos, infographics, and press releases, and posts to 

appropriate platforms and share with appropriate constituents for distribution 

 

 Stays up-to-date on industry trends, best practices, insights, and emerging trends to identify 

and propose new digital marketing opportunities appropriate for the district 



Page 3 of 3  

  
Job Description - Communications  

Technician (cont’d) 

 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (cont’d) 

 

 Works with administrators, teachers, guest speakers, and others to design, photograph, record, 

and/or prepare content for publication to communicate student, staff, and district 

announcements, accomplishments, initiatives, programs, and/or activities  

 

 Assists with print, telephone, and multimedia communications requested by the Superintendent 

and other administrators 

 

 Performs other departmental duties as assigned  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The West Chester Area School District is an equal 

opportunity employment, educational and service organization. 

 

 



WEST CHESTER AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

Page 1 of 2 

 

POSITION TITLE: Registered Behavior Technician (RBT) DATE:  November 28, 2022 

DEPARTMENT:  Pupil Services LOCATION:    Spellman 

FLSA:   Non-Exempt (Support Staff-WCAESPA)  

 

SUMMARY: A Registered Behavior Technician (RBT) is a credentialed paraprofessional who works 

one-on-one with students receiving Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA) therapy to implement their 

intervention plans.  The RBT will work closely with the special education teachers and school teams 

to implement behavior plans for students. 

 

REPORTING RELATIONSHIPS: 

• Works under the guidance and direction of the supervising teacher(s), supervising 

Behavior Support Specialist, Pupil Services Coordinator and administrators in the 

performance of assigned duties. 

• Works cooperatively with other administrators, supervisors, staff, parents and 

students to perform job responsibilities as outlined. 

 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: 

1. 10-month employee per bargaining agreement 

2. Salary (step/level placement) & Benefits are as described in the current Collective 

Bargaining Agreement. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS & PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 

To successfully perform this position, a person must be able to perform each essential duty 

satisfactorily. The qualification requirements listed below represent minimum levels of 

educational achievement, training, skill and/or ability necessary. 

 

• High school diploma or equivalent 

• Basic computer skills required 

• Excellent communication skills required 

• Registered Behavior Technician Certification and must maintain annual supervisory 

requirements, renew certification annually and abide by the ethics outline by the 

Behavior Analyst Certification Board (BACB). 

 

Qualified candidate will be required to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools or 

controls, and to talk and hear; Sit and occasionally be required to stand, walk, stoop, kneel 

and crouch; Have specific vision abilities, to include close vision, color vision, and the ability 

to adjust focus;  Have the ability to lift and/or move up to 25 pounds; and possess effective 

communication, judgmental, planning and human relations skills, and will be required to 

work under periods of stress due to the level of the position responsibility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

          Job Description – Registered Behavior Technician (cont’d) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:     

This list is intended to be illustrative rather than complete and serves to show major duties 

and responsibilities and does not express or imply that these are the only duties to be 

performed by the incumbent in this position. The employee will be required to be consistently 

at work and perform any other position-related duties requested by the supervisor. 

 

 Maintain a thorough understanding of Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA). Common techniques 

such as shaping, positive reinforcement, naturalistic teaching, prompting and prompt fading, 

and chaining. 

 

 Collect data about students’ behaviors through direct observation.  Describe and record 

students’ behaviors in measurable terms.  Generate a complete report while complying with 

all applicable legal, regulatory, and workplace requirements. This report will involve other 

variables, such as illness and medication notes, and other objective observations.  

 

 Assist BCBAs as directed with behavior reduction assessments and skill acquisition plans. 

 

 Teach students the specific behavior skills called for in treatment plans. 

 Nurture students’ social skills. 

 

 Communicate behavioral intervention results to teachers and/or BCBAs. 

 

 Maintain effective time management.  Tasks are completed in specific order, by date, and 

communicate all observational data appropriately. 

 

 RBTs must also assist BCBAs with assessment procedures, which vary depending on each 

student’s behavioral needs. 

 

 Collectively with building teams and the Behavior Support Specialist, create a skill acquisition 

plan for the student and implement procedures to encourage the student’s acquisition of the 

desired skill. 

 

 Collectively with building teams and the Behavior Support Specialist, create a behavior 

reduction plan and implement interventions and differential reinforcement procedures. 

 

 Maintain clear lines of communication and professional boundaries, and implement 

supervisors’ feedback to improve your professional performance. 

 

 Other duties as assigned by Supervisors. 

 
 

 

 

 

The West Chester Area School District is an equal 

opportunity employment, educational and service organization. 
 

 

 


	1 Board Agenda
	2 2022.10.25 Oct 25 meeting minutes draft
	3 Consent agenda
	4 2022.11.28 Pers Reco
	5 2022.11.28 EDU Comm Action Packet
	Nov Consent Agenda back up.pdf
	Activity Account Nov
	Activity Account Nov.pdf
	20221103083829151.pdf

	Terminate Account
	Overnight Trips Nov
	Overnight Trips Nov.pdf
	Overnight Trips Nov.pdf
	20221101162651578.pdf
	20221101162123419.pdf

	20221103083656758.pdf

	20221109095204213.pdf

	Policy 913 2nd R
	Policy 913.2 2nd R


	6 2022.11.28 Pupil Services Action Packet
	PS I so move November 2022
	Nov. PS Comm Minutes 2022

	7 2022.11.28 PFC Action packet
	11.28.22 PFC ACTION items
	Property & Finance Committee
	November 28, 2022 – ACTION ITEMS

	11.21.22 PFC Committee Minutes
	Resolution to Implement Act 57 (11.2.22)
	FINAL Capital Presentation 11-10-22
	West Chester Area School District
	Table of Contents��
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12


	8 1 2022.11 November Treasurer's Report packet
	Oct 2022 treasurers report
	2022.11 November Treasurer's Report
	2022.11 Nov Statement of Disbursements

	8 2 2022.11 November Financial Report packet
	Oct 2022 finreport
	2022.11 Nov Rev and Exp Rpt

	OB Action packet web
	OB i so move
	Human Resources Specialist
	Human Resources Generalist 1
	Human Resources Lead Generalist
	Communications Technician
	Registered Behavior Technician




